
 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – March 27, 2023  Page 1 of 2 

 
 
Date: March 27, 2023 
Place: In-Person / Headquarters -17520 – 22nd Ave E., Tacoma, WA   
 Virtual / (Visit www.centralpiercefire.org for instructions to join webinar) 
Time: 4:00 p.m. 
 
Citizens attending virtually that wish to address the Board during Public Comment 
use the “raise hand” feature on the webinar. Statements or comments for the record 
may be submitted to aparamapoonya@centralpiercefire.org by 3:00pm meeting day.  

             
 
1. Call to Order 

 

A. Roll Call 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Approval of Agenda  
 

A. Pg. 1: Agenda 
 
4. Public Comment (for items not specifically listed on the Agenda) 
 
5. Consent Agenda (Single Motion)  

 
A. Excused Absences:  
B. Pg. 3: Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of March 13, 2023  
C. Pg. 6: Approval of:  

 
Pg. XX: For Informational Purposes Only - The following electronic payments totaling 
$545,054.55 (AP Warrant Numbers 58660, 58661, 58662, 58666). 

 
6. Unfinished Business (Second Reading and Final Action) 

 
7. New Business (First Reading) 

A. Pg. 48: Board Policy 3.13 Public Relations Events Policy – FD Robacker 
 

8. Considerations and Requests 
A. Pg. 52: PSG GADCS Contract – FD Robacker 

 
B. Pg. 63: Administrative Office Furniture RFP – AC Stueve 

 
C. Pg. 100: West Pierce Fuel ILA – AC Stueve 

 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58320 to 58320 totaling: $ (1,596.73) 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58523 to 58523 totaling: $ (757.68) 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58540 to 58540 totaling: $ (757.68) 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58623 to 58700 totaling: $ 750,900.41 
GRAND TOTAL $ 747,788.32 

1

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/
mailto:aparamapoonya@centralpiercefire.org


 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – March 27, 2023  Page 2 of 2 

 
 

9. Staff, Local, Firefighter's Association and Fire Chief Reports 
 

A. Pg. 103: Finance – FD Robacker 
 

B. Pg. 114: Logistics – AC Stueve  
 

C. Pg. 115: Prevention & Education – AC Berdan 
 

D. Pg. 117: Health & Safety – AC McKenzie 
 

E. Pg. 118: DC Administration – DC VanKeulen 
 

F. Pg. 119: Fire Chief – Chief Morrow 
 
10. Correspondence 

 

A. Pg. 120: Commendation 
 

B. Pg. 122: Employee Recognition 
 

C. Pg. 125: PPD Thank You Letter 
 
11. Commissioner Comments 

 
12. Executive Session 

RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) To evaluate the qualifications of an applicant for public 
employment or to review the performance of a public employee. However, subject 
to RCW 42.30.140(4), discussion by a governing body of salaries, wages, and other 
conditions of employment to be generally applied within the agency shall occur in a 
meeting open to the public, and when a governing body elects to take final action 
hiring, setting the salary of an individual employee or class of employees, or 
discharging or disciplining an employee, that action shall be taken in a meeting 
open to the public. 

 
13. Adjournment 
 
 
  

2



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved

Board of Commissioners 
Page 1 of 3  March 13, 2023  Board Meeting Minutes 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

March 13, 2023 

Chair Holm called the Regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners for Central Pierce Fire 
& Rescue to order at District Headquarters – 17520 22nd Ave E., Tacoma at 5:05 p.m.  A 
remote attendance option was available to the public. Present were Chair Holm, 
Commissioners Stringfellow, Willis, Coleman, and Mitchell, Ex-Officio Door, Chief Morrow, 
Deputy Chiefs Stueve and VanKeulen, FD Robacker, HRD Washo, Assistant Chief Kent, 
L726 President James, Support Specialist McInnis, and Executive Assistant Paramapoonya, 
Recorder.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Commissioner Stringfellow led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Commissioner Mitchell moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to approve the 
agenda. MOTION CARRIED.   

PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT SPECIFICALLY ON THE AGENDA) 
No public comment.  

CONSENT AGENDA (SINGLE MOTION) 
A. Excused Absences:
B. Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of February 27, 2023
C. Approval of:

Commissioner Willis moved and Commissioner Stringfellow seconded to approve the 
Consent Agenda with warrants totaling $6,749,609.79. MOTION CARRIED.  

UNFINISHED BUSINESS (SECOND READING AND FINAL ACTION) 
A. Board Policy 3.30 Credit Card Usage

FD Robacker reviewed Board Policy 3.30 Credit Card Usage. No changes were made after 
the First Reading. Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded 
to approve Board Policy 3.30 Credit Card Usage as presented by Staff. MOTION CARRIED. 

NEW BUSINESS (FIRST READING – FOR DISCUSSION AND REVIEW ONLY) 
No New Business 

CONSIDERATIONS AND REQUESTS 
No Considerations or Requests 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 58557 to 58622 totaling: $ 6,727,707.73 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107731 to 107736 totaling: $ 21,902.06 
GRAND TOTAL $ 6,749,609.79 

3



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 2 of 3                                                                                                   March 13, 2023  Board Meeting Minutes 

STAFF, LOCAL, FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION, AND FIRE CHIEF REPORTS (For 
Information Only) 
The following divisions provided a written report in the packet: 

 
A. Finance/FD Robacker: FD Robacker reviewed the January Checkbook and Financial 

Reports.  
 

B. Human Resources/HRD Washo: HRD Washo reviewed the HR Division Report.  
 

C. Training/AC Benning:  
 

D. Field Operations/AC Kent: AC Kent reviewed the Field Operations Division Report.  
 

E. EMS/AC Bouchard:  
 

F. DC Operations/DC Stueve: DC Stueve reviewed the Operations Section Report.  
 

G. Fire Chief’s Report/Chief Morrow: Chief Morrow reviewed the Fire Chief’s report. 
Thank you to the Board for supporting the Staff’s attendance at the NW Leadership 
Seminar.  
 
L726 President James: The Union is preparing for a Board Retreat to discuss strategic 
planning.  

 
CORRESPONDENCE 

A. Employee Recognition: Chair Holm enjoyed reading about our personnel’s hard work.  
 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 
Chair Holm: It is great to see that Staff and the Local are collaborating well. Chair Holm would 
like to see more of the Board Members attend some of the upcoming conferences this year.  
 
Vice Chair Stringfellow: Commissioner Stringfellow inquired about the Ready Rebound 
program.  
 
Commissioner Willis: Thank you to Central Pierce for backfilling for Tacoma Fire. It’s great to 
hear about the Union Retreat.  
 
Commissioner Coleman: The Leadership Seminar was great, overall.  
 
Commissioner Mitchell: Happy to be here all together! 
 
Ex-Officio Door: Councilmember Door discussed details regarding Next Generation 911.  
 
 
ADJOURNMENTS 
There being no further business, Commissioner Willis moved and Commissioner Mitchell 
seconded to adjourn the meeting. MOTION CARRIED. 
 

4



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 

 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 3 of 3                                                                                                   March 13, 2023  Board Meeting Minutes 

The meeting adjourned at 5:41 p.m. 
 
 
 
            
MATTHEW HOLM    TANYA ROBACKER 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD   DISTRICT SECRETARY 
 
 
 
 
      
ARIEL PARAMAPOONYA 
RECORDER  

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: March 13, 2023 
Item Title:  Board Policy 3.13 Public Relations Events Policy 
Attachments:  Board Policy 3.13 
Submitted by: FD Robacker 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
Board Policy 3.13 Public Relations Events Policy has been reviewed by Staff. The policy has 
been moved to the new format and updated with minor content changes. 
 
The Policy is presented for first reading and comment. 
 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 

48



 
 

 
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Page 1 of 1 
Policy  -       
Approved by  ______________   3/23/2023  
 Fire Chief                   
 

 

ELEEMOSYNARY POLICY  
 
NUMBER .....  ..........  .........  313 

CATEGORY  ..........  .........  Administration  

EFFECTIVE .  ..........  .........  DATE: 07/24/00 

AUTHOR .....  ..........  .........  Vicky Carlsen 

 

 

 

 

REFERENCE 
Washington State Auditor and Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
 
SCOPE 
All Personnel 
 
PURPOSE 
To establish clear guidelines on using public funds for public relation events. 
 

POLICY 
It is the policy of Central Pierce Fire & Rescue to provide support for District public relations 
events.  Support is defined as funding for mailers, flyers, etc. for the purpose of notification of 
public relation events as well as food-stuffs and beverages.  No alcoholic beverages are 
allowed at Central Pierce Fire & Rescue sponsored events.  If food is provided the cost must 
be reasonable and available to all members of the community. 
 
This policy pertains to open houses at fire stations, pancake breakfasts, and similar public 
relation events. 
 
This policy is established based on information provided by the Washington State Auditor’s 
Office and presented to the Board of Commissioners at the June 12, 2000 meeting. 
 
PROCEDURE 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
N/A 

49



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

STANDARD OPERATING GUIDELINEBOARD POLICY 

NUMBER 3.13 

 

 

ORGINATED ORIGINATED: AND APPROVED: 

REVIEWED:APPROVED: 

LAST REVIEW:EFFECTIVE:  

 

SUBJECT: ELEEMOSYNARY PUBLIC RELATIONS EVENTS POLICY 

 

PURPOSE: To establish clear guidelines on using public funds for public relation events. 

 

POLICY: It is the policy of Central Pierce Fire & Rescue to provide support for District public 

relations events.  Support is defined as funding for mailers, flyers, etc. for the purpose of 

notification of public relation events as well as food-stuffs and beverages.  No alcoholic 

beverages are allowed at Central Pierce Fire & Rescue sponsored events.  If food is 

provided the cost must be reasonable and available to all members of the community. 

This policy pertains to open houses at fire stations, pancake breakfasts, and similar 

public relation events. 

This policy is established based on information provided by the Washington State 

Auditor’s Office and presented to the Board of Commissioners at the June 12, 2000 

meeting. 

 

AUTHORITY & RESPONSIBILITY:  XXX 

 

PROCEDURE: XXX 

 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

DUSTIN MORROW MATT HOLM 

FIRE CHIEFBOARD CHAIR 

50



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

BOARD POLICY 

NUMBER 3.13 

 

 

ORIGINATED:  

APPROVED: 

EFFECTIVE:  

 

SUBJECT: PUBLIC RELATIONS EVENTS POLICY 

 

PURPOSE: To establish clear guidelines on using public funds for public relation events. 

 

POLICY: It is the policy of Central Pierce Fire & Rescue to provide support for District public 

relations events.  Support is defined as funding for mailers, flyers, etc. for the purpose of 

notification of public relation events as well as food-stuffs and beverages.  No alcoholic 

beverages are allowed at Central Pierce Fire & Rescue sponsored events.  If food is 

provided the cost must be reasonable and available to all members of the community. 

This policy pertains to open houses at fire stations, pancake breakfasts, and similar 

public relation events. 

 

AUTHORITY & RESPONSIBILITY:   

 

PROCEDURE:  

 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

 

_______________________ 

MATT HOLM 

BOARD CHAIR 

51



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Date: March 27, 2023 

Item Title: PSG GADCS Contract 

Attachments: Click here to enter text. 

Submitted by: Tanya Robacker 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:   

 

 

 

 

  Click here to enter text. 

 

MOTION:  Approving budget of $35,000 to move from Commissioner Contingency to Finance Div 201, 

and authorizing Finance Director Robacker to sign a contract with PSG for Medicare Ground Ambulance 

Data Collection System reporting. 

 

SUMMARY:    Effective January 1, 2020 through 2024, Centers for Medicare & Medicaid services (CMS) 

will select GEMT providers to participate in Medicare Ground Ambulance Data Collection System 

(GADCS) reporting to evaluate the GEMT program and whether reform is needed. Central Pierce Fire 

was selected to complete the GADCS survey for 2022 data by May 31, 2023. 

 

Key Reasons this service is needed by an outside vendor: 

1. Non-compliance of the GADCS survey will result in a 10% reduction in Medicare Part B payments 

for one full calendar year period. 

2. Data must be collected and analyzed to answer specific questions related organizational 

utilization, staffing, expenditures, revenue including paid claims, etc. within the survey. 

3. PCG works with over 500 Fire and EMS departments across the country, which provides us a 

deep understanding of the agencies, reporting requirements, and the data which allows us to 

accurately analyze provider data, perform benchmark analysis, and provide audit support if 

there are inquires. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:   $35,000 flat fee for professional services. 

52



 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 

Medicare Ground Ambulance Data Collection Services 

 

 

 Page 1 

 

 

MEDICARE GROUND AMBULANCE DATA COLLECTION SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

This Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between the Central Pierce Fire & Rescue (“PRO-

VIDER”) and Public Consulting Group LLC (“PCG”) as of March 27, 2023 (“Effective Date”). 

 

WHEREAS, The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) implemented a Ground Ambu-

lance Data Collection System in response to legislation passed by Congress in the Bipartisan Budget Act 

of 2018 requiring providers of ground ambulance services to collect and report expenditures, revenues, 

utilization, and other data; and 

 

WHEREAS, PCG possesses professional skills that can assist PROVIDER in collecting and reporting the 

required data elements to complete the Ground Ambulance Data Collection System; and  

 

WHEREAS, PROVIDER wishes to engage PCG as an independent contractor to perform professional 

services in connection with this initiative;  

 

THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which is acknowledged, 

PROVIDER and PCG hereby agree as follows: 

 

1. Description of Services 

PCG will provide the professional services assigned by PROVIDER and more fully described in 

Attachment A (the “Contracted Services”). PCG acknowledges and agrees that time is of the es-

sence in the value of the Contracted Services and shall render such Contracted Services in a 

prompt and diligent manner.  

 

2.         Term  
PCG will commence performance for the Contracted Services under this Agreement on the Effec-

tive Date and will complete performance by June 30, 2026 (the “Term”). Unless otherwise speci-

fied by PROVIDER in writing, PCG will provide the Contracted Services for the full Term.  

 

Upon the expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, all rights granted hereunder 

shall immediately terminate except for those concerning compensation, confidentiality, intellec-

tual property, or any other provision that, by its terms, is intended to survive the expiration or ter-

mination of this Agreement.  Specifically, notwithstanding the expiration or termination of the 

Agreement, PROVIDER will compensate PCG as set forth herein with respect to any reimburse-

ments PROVIDER receives after the expiration or termination of this Agreement that are the re-

sult of the Contracted Services 

 

3. Compensation 

a. PROVIDER will compensate PCG pursuant to the provisions contained in Attachment B 

and this Section 3, and will not pay PCG any other benefits, expenses, or compensation. 

The compensation arrangement may be changed by written agreement of the parties.   

 

b. PROVIDER will compensate PCG within thirty (30) days following the receipt of any 

billing statement(s) from PCG that comport with the terms of this Agreement and Attach-

ment B. PCG shall submit billing statements directly to the PROVIDER Contact Person 

identified in Section 5.  

 

53

https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Medicare-Fee-for-Service-Payment/AmbulanceFeeSchedule/Ground-Ambulance-Services-Data-Collection-System
https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Medicare-Fee-for-Service-Payment/AmbulanceFeeSchedule/Ground-Ambulance-Services-Data-Collection-System


 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 

Medicare Ground Ambulance Data Collection Services 

 

 

 Page 2 

 

 

c. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, PCG will be entitled to receive com-

pensation for Contracted Services satisfactorily provided prior to the effective date of ter-

mination or expiration.  

 

4. Termination 

This Agreement may be terminated immediately by either party following a material breach of 

this Agreement and a failure to cure such breach within ten (10) business days after receiving 

written notice.  

 

5.         Notices and Contact Persons.  Any notices, requests, consents and other communications here-

under shall be in writing and shall be effective upon any of the following:  (1) when delivered 

personally to the person designated below to receive notices for the party (the party’s “Contact 

Person”); (2) when e-mailed to the party’s Contact Person at the e-mail address listed below with 

an acknowledgment of receipt; or (3) five days after being deposited into the United States mail 

(either certified mail with return receipt requested, or first class postage prepaid), addressed to the 

party’s Contact Person at the address set forth below.  The individuals listed below shall serve as 

each party’s Contact Person for purposes of this Agreement unless the party replaces the Contact 

Person by written notice to the other party as required by this Section: 

 

For PCG: For CLIENT: 

Sarah DiCicco  Tanya Robacker   

Senior Consultant Finance Director 

Public Consulting Group LLC Central Pierce Fire & Rescue   

816 Congress Avenue, Suite 1110 PO Box 940  

Austin, TX 78701 Spanaway, WA 98387  

sdicicco@pcgus.com trobacker@centralpiercefire.org  

    

6. Subcontracting  

PCG may subcontract work under this Agreement to one or more of its affiliate companies. 

 

7. Standards of Conduct 

             PCG shall comply with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, and standards of ethical conduct, 

including those relating specifically to the performance of the Contracted Services under this 

Agreement. 

 

8. Relationship of the Parties 
a. The parties agree that PCG is an independent contractor, and that neither it nor any of its 

employees is an employee of PROVIDER. 

 

b. PCG shall secure and maintain all insurance, licenses, and/or permits necessary to per-

form the Contracted Services. PCG shall pay all applicable state and federal taxes includ-

ing unemployment insurance, social security taxes, and state and federal withholding 

taxes. PCG understands that neither it nor its employees will be eligible for benefits or 

privileges provided by PROVIDER to its employees. PROVIDER will deliver to PCG 

statements of income at the end of each tax year consistent with its independent contrac-

tor status.   

 

54



 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 

Medicare Ground Ambulance Data Collection Services 

 

 

 Page 3 

 

 

c. Except as may be otherwise provided in this Agreement, PCG has complete and exclu-

sive authority over the means and methods of performing the Contracted Services, need 

not adhere to policies and procedures applicable to PROVIDER employees, and may per-

form the Contracted Services according to its own schedule at its own offices or at any 

other location.  PCG shall hire its own employees, use its own tools and equipment, and 

purchase its own supplies.  

 

d. PCG has no authority to and shall not purport to bind, represent, or speak for PROVIDER 

or otherwise incur any obligation on behalf of PROVIDER for any purpose unless ex-

pressly authorized by PROVIDER. 

 

9. Record Maintenance 

With respect to all records of any kind that PCG acquires or creates for purposes of performing 

the Contracted Services, PCG shall not knowingly destroy records that are required to be pre-

served by law and shall maintain project records in an orderly manner.  

 

10. Assignment 

This Agreement may not be assigned by either party without the prior written consent of the other 

party, which consent may not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.  Notwithstanding the forego-

ing, this Agreement may be assigned by either party: (i) to one of its affiliates or subsidiaries; or 

(ii) in connection with a merger, consolidation, or sale of all of the equity interests of the party, or 

a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the party to which this Agreement relates. 

 

11. Proprietary or Confidential Information 

For purposes of fulfilling its obligations under this Agreement, one party (“Disclosing Party”) 

may convey to the other party (“Receiving Party”) information that is considered proprietary and 

confidential to the Disclosing Party. 

 

a. “Proprietary or Confidential Information” is defined as information -- including but not 

limited to trade secrets, strategies, financial information, sales information, pricing infor-

mation, operational techniques, software, and intellectual property -- that (i) has not been 

previously published or otherwise disclosed by the Disclosing Party to the general public; 

(ii) has not previously been available to the Receiving Party or others without confidentiality 

restrictions;  (iii) reasonably would be considered confidential and proprietary notwithstand-

ing the absence of any designation; or (iv) is not normally furnished to others without com-

pensation;  and which the Disclosing Party wishes to protect against unrestricted disclo-

sure or competitive use.  In addition, the term “Proprietary or Confidential Information” 

shall also mean all information or data, regardless of whether it is in tangible form, that is 

disclosed or otherwise made available by the Disclosing Party to the Receiving Party and 

designated as “confidential” or “proprietary” by the Disclosing Party.  Such designation 

shall be clear and in writing, either before the Proprietary or Confidential Information is 

disclosed or within a reasonable time afterwards.  The term “Proprietary or Confidential 

Information” includes the original information provided by Disclosing Party as well as all 

copies. 

 

b. Proprietary or Confidential Information does not include information that, without a 

breach of this Agreement, is (i) known to the Receiving Party without restriction when re-

ceived, or thereafter developed independently by the Receiving Party; (ii) obtained by the 

55



 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 

Medicare Ground Ambulance Data Collection Services 

 

 

 Page 4 

 

 

Receiving Party from a source that is lawfully in possession of such information (other than 

the Disclosing Party) through no breach of this Agreement or any other confidentiality obli-

gations; or (iii) in the public domain when received, or thereafter in the public domain 

through no fault of the Receiving Party.  

 

c. The Receiving Party shall preserve Proprietary or Confidential Information securely and in 

strict confidence, exercising no less than the same degree of care used to protect the security 

and confidentiality of its own confidential and proprietary information, and in any event no 

less than reasonable care. 

 

d. The Receiving Party shall use and disclose Proprietary or Confidential only for purposes 

of the Contracted Services. The Receiving Party shall not divulge any such Proprietary or 

Confidential Information to any employee who is not working on the Contracted Ser-

vices, without the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party. 

 

e. The Receiving Party shall not disclose the Proprietary or Confidential Information to any 

third party without prior written authorization from the Disclosing Party. 

 

f. All Proprietary or Confidential Information shall remain the property of the Disclosing Party 

notwithstanding any disclosure under this Agreement.  The Receiving Party recognizes and 

agrees that nothing contained in this Agreement nor the exchange of Proprietary or Confi-

dential Information under this Agreement shall be construed as transferring or granting any 

right, title, interest, or license under any copyrights, inventions, or patents now or hereafter 

owned or controlled by either Party.  The Disclosing Party does not grant the Receiving 

Party any express or implied right to or under the Disclosing Party or another party’s patents, 

copyrights, trademarks, trade secret information, or other proprietary rights.  The Receiving 

Party shall not make, have made, use, or sell for any purpose any product or other item us-

ing, incorporating, or derived from any Proprietary or Confidential Information of the Dis-

closing Party.  

 

g. If and to the extent that Proprietary or Confidential Information includes information that 

is confidential or proprietary to a third party, the Disclosing Party warrants that the dis-

closure does not violate any agreement with the third party or any rights of the third 

party, including any agreement or rights under the Health Insurance Portability and Ac-

countability Act (“HIPAA”) and other federal or state laws governing medical records, 

and shall indemnify the Receiving Party as to any claim against it by the third party or a 

government agency relating to such disclosure. 

 

h. Rights and obligations under this Agreement shall take precedence over specific legends or 

statements that may be associated with Proprietary or Confidential Information when re-

ceived. 

 

i. The Receiving Party shall immediately notify the Disclosing Party upon discovery of any 

loss or unauthorized disclosure of its Confidential Information. 

 

j. The Receiving Party shall not export, directly or indirectly, any U.S. technical data ac-

quired pursuant to this Agreement, or any products utilizing such data, in violation of the 

United States export laws or regulations. 

56



 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 

Medicare Ground Ambulance Data Collection Services 

 

 

 Page 5 

 

 

k. If the Receiving Party is requested or required to disclose Proprietary or Confidential In-

formation pursuant to a subpoena or an order of a court or governmental agency having 

jurisdiction, the Receiving Party shall, prior to any disclosure of Proprietary or Confiden-

tial Information:  

 

i. Provide the Disclosing Party with prompt written notice of the existence, terms, 

and circumstances surrounding the legal or governmental request or requirement, 

no later than 2 business days after receiving it;  

ii. Consult with the Disclosing Party on the appropriate response to the request;  

iii. Cooperate with the Disclosing Party in its reasonable efforts to obtain an order 

or otherwise limit or restrict the disclosure of its Proprietary or Confidential Infor-

mation that is subject to the legal or governmental request or requirement, at Dis-

closing Party’s sole expense; and  

iv. Only after fully complying with the above steps, if disclosure of Proprietary or 

Confidential Information is still required, furnish only such portion of the Proprie-

tary or Confidential Information as the Receiving Party is advised by counsel is le-

gally required to be disclosed. 

j. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, each party shall cease use of Proprie-

tary or Confidential Information received from the other party.  At the written request of 

the Disclosing Party at any time during this Agreement, or within 30 days of the termina-

tion or expiration of this Agreement, the Receiving Party shall promptly return all copies 

of such information in its possession, custody, or control, promptly furnishing the Dis-

closing Party with written certification of such return.  If the Disclosing Party does not 

request the return of Proprietary or Confidential Data within 30 days of the termination or 

expiration of this Agreement, the Receiving Party shall destroy all copies of such infor-

mation in its possession, custody or control and shall, upon the Disclosing Party’s re-

quest, furnish the Disclosing Party with written certification of such destruction. If return 

or destruction is not practicable, the Receiving Party shall so notify the Disclosing Party 

and shall keep such information secure and confidential in perpetuity. 

 

k. The termination or expiration of this Agreement for any reason shall not discharge the 

obligations of the Parties with respect to the protection of Proprietary or Confidential In-

formation set forth in this section. 

 

l. Other than as set forth above, neither party makes any representation or warranty as to the 

accuracy or completeness of its Proprietary or Confidential Information disclosed under this 

Agreement. 

 

m. This Agreement and its terms shall be treated as Proprietary and Confidential Infor-

mation.   

 

12. As-Is Information and Data 

The parties agree and acknowledge that PCG will receive all information and data from PRO-

VIDER on an as-is basis. PCG is not responsible for errors or omissions in any data that it re-

ceives from PROVIDER, nor for any inaccuracies or mistakes in the survey that result from er-

57



 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 

Medicare Ground Ambulance Data Collection Services 

 

 

 Page 6 

 

 

rors or omissions in information received from PROVIDER. PCG is not responsible for review-

ing, evaluating, or verifying the accuracy or completeness of any information received by PRO-

VIDER. PCG is not liable for any reimbursement, refund, or contribution should PROVIDER be 

subject to penalties in connection with the Contracted Services. 

 

13. Intellectual Property 

Each party retains all right of interest in any work product and all intellectual property that it con-

ceives, devises, or develops in connection with the performance of the Contracted Services under 

this Agreement, or that it owned prior to execution of this Agreement, except as may be specifi-

cally assigned or transferred in a written contract. PCG guarantees that its use or creation of any 

intellectual property under this Agreement does not infringe upon the intellectual property rights 

of any third party. 

 

14.       Conflicts of Interest 

The parties understand that PCG is not required to perform the Contracted Services on a full-time 

basis for PROVIDER and may perform services for other individuals and organizations consistent 

with the limitations in this Agreement.   

 

15. Waiver 

The failure of a party to enforce a provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver with 

respect to that provision or any other provision of this Agreement. 

 

16. Entire Agreement 

This Agreement (including the attachments) constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 

with respect to the subject matter of the Contracted Services, and supersedes all prior agreements 

and understandings, both written and oral. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any separate written 

agreement between the parties regarding the confidentiality and security of information ex-

changed or used by the parties for purposes of this Agreement shall be effective unless and until it 

is specifically terminated. 

 

17. Amendment 

This Agreement may be amended only by written agreement of the parties, signed by authorized 

representatives and referencing this Agreement. 

 

18. Severability 

If any provision in this Agreement is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 

unenforceable, the remaining provisions in this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. 

 

19. Applicable Law and Venue 

This Agreement, and all other aspects of the business relationship between the parties, shall be 

construed, interpreted, and enforced under and in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth 

of Massachusetts, without regard to choice of law provisions.  The parties also consent to the per-

sonal jurisdiction in its courts, agree that the state and federal courts of the Commonwealth of 

Massachusetts shall have exclusive jurisdiction over the enforcement of this Agreement, and 

waive any objection to venue. 

 

 

 

58



 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 

Medicare Ground Ambulance Data Collection Services 

 

 

 Page 7 

 

 

20. Miscellaneous 

a. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT, PCG DOES NOT 

MAKE ANY WARRANTY WITH RESPECT TO THE CONTRACTED SERVICES, 

WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY IM-

PLIED WARRANTIES, WHETHER OF MERCHANTABILITY, SUITABILITY, FIT-

NESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR OTHERWISE FOR SAID CON-

TRACTED SERVICES. 

 

b. NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER ANY INCIDENTAL, INDI-

RECT, SPECIAL, PUNITIVE OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING, 

BUT NOT LIMITED TO, SUCH DAMAGES ARISING FROM ANY TYPE OR MAN-

NER OF COMMERCIAL, BUSINESS, OR FINANCIAL LOSS, EVEN IF THE 

OTHER PARTY HAD ACTUAL OR CONSTRUCTIVE KNOWLEDGE OF THE POS-

SIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES AND REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH DAM-

AGES WERE FORESEEABLE.  OTHER THAN A CLAIM BY PCG THAT CLI-

ENT HAS NOT PAID COMPENSATION UNDER SECTION 3, UNDER NO 

CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL EITHER PARTY’S AGGREGATE LIABILITY 

TO THE OTHER PARTY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT EXCEED $35,000 IN 

THE AGGREGATE. 
 

c.  Neither party shall be responsible for delays or failures in performance resulting from 

acts of God, acts of civil or military authority, terrorism, fire, flood, strikes, war, epidem-

ics, pandemics, shortage of power, or other acts or causes reasonably beyond the control 

of that party.  The party experiencing the force majeure event agrees to give the other 

party notice promptly following the occurrence of a force majeure event, and to use dili-

gent efforts to re-commence performance as promptly as commercially practicable.  

 

d. The parties agree that the terms of this Agreement result from negotiations between them. 

This Agreement will not be construed in favor of or against either party by reason of au-

thorship. 

 

e. The captions and headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and are not in-

tended to, and shall not be construed to, limit, enlarge, or affect the scope or intent of this 

Agreement, nor the meaning of any provisions hereof. 

 

f. Each individual signing below on behalf of a party hereby represents and warrants that 

they have full power and authority to enter into this Agreement on behalf of such party.  

Each party to this Agreement hereby represents and warrants that it has full power and 

authority to enter into this Agreement, that the execution, delivery, and performance of 

this Agreement has been fully authorized and approved, and that no further approvals or 

consents are required to bind such party. 

 

  

59



 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 

Medicare Ground Ambulance Data Collection Services 

 

 

 Page 8 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date written 

above. 

 

PUBLIC CONSULTING GROUP LLC CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

BY: ________________________ BY: ________________________ 

NAME: ________________________ NAME: ________________________ 

TITLE: ________________________ TITLE: ________________________ 

DATE: ________________________ DATE: ________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

60



 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 

Medicare Ground Ambulance Data Collection Services 

 

 

 Page 9 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

CONTRACTED SERVICES 

 

A. PROVIDER provided at least one Medicare ground ambulance transport in the calendar year of 

2017, is enrolled to receive Medicare payments, and received notification from CMS of its re-

quired participation in the Medicare Ground Ambulance Data Collection Survey (the “Survey”). 

PROVIDER must comply with both U.S. Department of Health and Human Services under the 

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) and the Health Information 

Technology for Economic and Clinical Health (HITECH) Act and as such, PCG shall comply. 

 

B. This Survey requests individual providers to submit data to CMS that relates to organizational 

characteristics, utilization, costs and revenue. The data may be used by CMS to evaluate the ade-

quacy of Medicare payment rates for ground ambulance services, to inform future Medicare rate 

changes, and possible payment system reforms.  

 

C. PCG shall be familiar with the Medicare Ground Ambulance Data Collection Survey and all the 

rules, regulations and requirements associated with the Survey. 

 

D. PCG shall have the knowledge, skills, and ability to fully complete the required data survey to the 

Center of Medicaid and Medicare Services (CMS) within the time frame prescribed by CMS. 

 

E. PCG shall have knowledge and experience in the completion of all 13 Sections of the “Instru-

ment” Survey. 

 

F. PCG shall keep PROVIDER informed of all updates relating to the Survey. 

 

G. PCG will prepare and audit the completed Survey and its supporting documentation in accord-

ance with the Medicare principles of reimbursement that include but are not limited to 2 CFR 200 

Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 

Awards, and other relevant documents which provide regulatory guidance on allowable costs and 

provider charges. 

 

H. PCG will submit the final report and supporting documentation, if allowable by proxy, via the 

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) web-based portal; if not allowable, PRO-

VIDER will submit the final report and supporting documentation.  A final copy of the Survey, 

work papers and methodologies for filing the Survey will be submitted to PROVIDER. 

 

I. The Contracted services that PCG will provide for the Survey will apply to one (1) National Pro-

vider Identifier (NPI) for one (1) 12-month reporting period, defined as January 1, 2022 to De-

cember 31, 2022, followed by a 5-month data collection/submission period commencing on May 

31, 2023. 

 

 

  

61



 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 

Medicare Ground Ambulance Data Collection Services 

 

 

 Page 10 

 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

COMPENSATION  

 

In consideration for the Contracted Services, PCG shall be paid $35,000. PCG will invoice PROVIDER 

within thirty (30) days of the Instrument Survey submission to CMS. PROVIDER will remit payment to 

PCG within thirty (30) days of invoice receipt.  

62



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: March 27th, 2023    
Item Title: Administrative Office Furniture RFP 
Attachments:      
Submitted by:    AC Stueve 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Motion:  To award the bid submitted by Catalyst for the purchase of administrative 
office furniture through the competitive bid process. 
 
Summary:  
 

 The District conducted a competitive bid process with a deadline for submittals 
on 03/14/2023.  The District received two proposals by the deadline. 

 The proposal submitted to the BOC for approval was selected based on the final scoring 
of criteria included in the RFP. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 

 Capital Outlay 
o $8351.61 (Sales Tax included) 

 

63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



Evaluation Criteria % Percentage Catalyst Technology International, Inc

2.4.1. - Price 60% $8,351.61 $7510.00(sales tax not included)

2.4.2 - Delivery Date 20% 1 2

2.4.3 - Availability of Parts & Services/Customer 10% 1 2

2.4.4 - Experience and Reputation of Vendor 10% 1 2

Placement 100% 1 2

2023 Administrative Office Furniture RFP Scoring Sheet

96



97



RFP CHECKLIST

1 RFP Created and reviewed by Snure Y
2 RFP Advertised Y
3 Submit to finance Y

Copy of RFP Solicitation Y
Copy of RFP Ad in public notices Y
Copy of Responses Y
Log of Responses Y
Copy of Scoring Sheet ( should match Scoring method in RFP) y
AIS to BOC regarding Selection Y

4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

98



Bid Opening
Bid Log Bid Opening Date: 03/15/2023

Time: 1200
Location: Station 60
Present: AC P.Stueve/EA Ariel P./DC E.Stueve

Bid # Bidder Date Bid 

Rec'd

Time Bid 

Rec'd

Submission

Complete 

Y/N

Bid Amt

Sales Tax

Included 

Y/N

Total Bid
Comments

1 Catalyst 3/10/2023 13:15 y  $          8,351.61 y  $          8,351.61 Delivery - by or before June 1st. 

2 Technology International, Inc. 3/10/2023 15:00 y  $          7,510.00 n  $          7,510.00 Delivery - 6-8 months.

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue

PO Box 940
Spanaway, WA  98387
(253) 538-6400

Project: Administrative Office Furniture

_________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________

99



Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary

Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Date:    March 27th, 2023 
Item Title: West Pierce Fuel ILA - Consideration 
Attachments:     
Submitted by:    AC Stueve 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD: 

SUMMARY: 

 WPFR, through our collaboration in the Training Consortium, have requested the
ability to provide fuel for their staff vehicles.

 CPFR currently sells fuel, in a similar fashion, to other agencies such as Graham,
South Pierce Fire and Rescue, Orting Valley Fire and Rescue, and Ashford/Elbe.

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

SUGGESTED MOTION: To approve the ILA as presented and enter in to an agreement with West Pierce
        Fire & Rescue for fuel services. 

100



   - 1 -  

FUEL FACILITY USE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into between Central Pierce Fire & Rescue, referred to as "CPFR" and 

West Pierce Fire and & Rescue, Pierce County Fire District #3, referred to as "User". 

RECITALS 

1. This Agreement is entered into in conformity with chapter 39.34 RCW, the Interlocal 

Cooperation Act. 

2. CPFR owns fuel facilities at various locations within the District that will be made 

available to User as set forth in Exhibit A. 

3. User desires to have access to the fuel facilities for purposes of fueling its apparatus. 

AGREEMENT 

To accomplish the purposes set forth above, and in consideration of the benefits to be received by 

both parties it is agreed as follows: 

1. Fuel Purchases. CPFR shall permit authorized User personnel to purchase fuel from 

the CPFR fuel facilities listed on Exhibit A on an as needed basis during the term of 

this Agreement.  CPFR shall provide User with the necessary, fuel cards, access codes 

etc., as required to access and purchase fuel at the fuel facilities. 

2. Fuel Costs. User shall pay $15.00 per apparatus for a fuel key or for a replacement 

key. User shall pay a $.05 administrative fee per gallon in addition to CPFR’s 

established fuel rates. CPFR shall invoice User for fuel purchases on a monthly basis.  

User shall pay all invoiced amounts within 30 days of receipt of the invoice.  

3. Term.  This agreement shall be effective upon execution and shall remain in force until 

either party provides the other party with 30 days advance written notice of termination. 

4. Equipment Repair.  In the event the User, its officials, agents or personnel cause any 

damage to the fuel facility, User shall pay the cost of any repairs that are not covered 

by CPFR’s insurance. 

5. Indemnification/Hold Harmless. User agrees to assume responsibility for all liabilities 

that occur or arise in any way out of the Use of the fuel facility by its officials, officers, 

employees, agents  or guests and to save and hold SPOFRCPFR, its elected officials, 

employees and officers harmless from all costs, expenses, losses and damages, including 

the costs of defense, incurred as a result of any acts or omissions of User, its officials, 

officers, employees, agents  or guests during the Use of the Premises. For purposes of this 

indemnification, User, its officials, officers and employees, shall not be considered to be 

agents of CPFR. IT IS FURTHER SPECIFICALLY AND EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD THAT 

THE INDEMNIFICATION PROVIDED HEREIN CONSTITUTES USER’S WAIVER OF 

IMMUNITY UNDER THE INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE, TITLE 51 RCW, SOLELY TO CARRY 

OUT THE PURPOSES OF THIS INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE. USER FURTHER 

ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT HAS MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED THIS WAIVER.  

101



   - 2 -  

6. Assignment.  User shall not assign its rights under this Agreement without the prior written 

consent of the CPFR. 

Dated: __________________________________. 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE WEST PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 

 

By:   By:  

  

102



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: March 13, 2023  

Item Title: Finance Division Report 

Attachments:  

Submitted by: FD Robacker  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:   

 

 

 

 

   

SUMMARY:     
 

1. February Checkbook & Financial Reports 
A. Facilities is part of GF so no violation being negative.  the Transfers are planned 

for April 
B. Operations Expenditures are under budget through 2/28/23 

 
2. Ground Ambulance Data Collection System  

A. Gathering data to report 5/31/23, contract in packet 
 

3. 2022 Financial Report due 5/31 
A. Reconciling 2022 

 
 
 
 

 

103



Central	Pierce	Fire	&	Rescue
Operating	Funds	Summary	of	Revenue	&	Expenditures
General	Fund	001	&	EMS	101	as	of	 02/28/2023 2																						 	
Percent	Budget	Complete	as	of	report	date: 16.7%

2023	REVENUE	&	EXPENDITURES	SUMMARY	(Operating	Funds)

A.	BEGINNING	BALANCE 2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
Year‐To‐Date	
TOTALs A

Carryforward	from	Prior	Month
(Jan	is	Min	Cash	Flow	Reserve) 12,800,000$		 12,800,000$		 5,988,335$		 ‐$																					 ‐$																							 ‐$																								 ‐$																								 ‐$																								 ‐$																								 ‐$																								 ‐$																						 ‐$																								 ‐$																								 $12,800,000 A
Total	 12,800,000			 12,800,000			 5,988,335			 ‐																		 ‐																			 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																			 ‐																				 ‐																				 12,800,000		 A

2023	Current
Year‐To‐Date	
ACTUALS	as	of

	%	
Budget	

B.	REVENUE	(+) BUDGET JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 02/28/2023 Received B
Reg	Levy 29,860,089					 64,819														 510,145								 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 574,964								 1.9% B
EMS	Levy 20,976,273					 25,629														 346,437								 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 372,066								 1.8% B
EMS	Levy	Write	Offs (1,300,000)						 (114,282)									 (80,173)									 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 (194,455)						 15.0% B
FBC 30,072,735					 67,843														 619,913								 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 687,756								 2.3% B
Transports 4,242,000							 426,976											 396,355								 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 823,331								 19.4% B
Transports	Paid	by	Levy 1,300,000							 114,282											 80,173											 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 194,455								 15.0% B
Licenses	&	Permits 25,500														 400																				 10,265											 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 10,665											 41.8% B
Other	Charges	for	Goods	&	Svcs 2,232,783							 65,573														 70,689											 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 136,262								 6.1% B
Grants	(Intergovernmental) ‐																					 254																				 1,541														 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 1,795														 100% B
Investment	Interest 220,000											 160,135											 130,163								 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 290,298								 132.0% B
Miscellaneous	&	Other	Tax	Revenue 17,800														 275																				 3,004														 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 3,279														 18.4% B
Transfers	&	Other	Sources 3,438,000							 ‐																					 200																	 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 200																		 0.0% B

B
Total	Revenues 91,085,180			 811,904										 2,088,712			 ‐																		 ‐																			 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																			 ‐																				 ‐																				 2,900,616				 3.2% B

2023	Current
Year‐To‐Date	
ACTUALS	as	of

	%	
Budget	

C.	EXPENDITURES	(‐) BUDGET JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC 02/28/2023 Spent C
Commissioners 64,259														 12,796														 3,190														 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 15,986											 24.9% C
Commissioners'	Contingency 250,000											 ‐																					 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 0.0% C
Admin	&	Internal	Services 12,069,777					 972,045											 1,127,170					 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 2,099,215				 17.4% C
Operations	(Suppression,	EMS) 62,716,835					 5,689,574							 4,322,142					 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 10,011,716		 16.0% C
Overtime	‐	ALL	DIVISIONS 6,428,383							 655,316											 859,122								 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 1,514,438				 23.6% C
Prevention	&	Education 2,355,121							 141,879											 82,557											 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 224,436								 9.5% C
Fleet	Maintenance 2,129,847							 190,959											 144,730								 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 335,689								 15.8% C
Transfers	to	ERF,	Facilities,	Projects 5,109,958							 ‐																					 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 0.0% C
Other	Uses ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																		 ‐																		 ‐																				 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 ‐																					 ‐																					 ‐																			 0.0% C

C
Total	Expenditures 91,124,180			 7,662,569						 6,538,911			 ‐																		 ‐																			 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																				 ‐																			 ‐																				 ‐																				 14,201,480		 15.6% C

D.	TOTAL	CHANGE	BY	MONTH
[Revenue	(‐)		Expenditure]
Increase	/	(Decrease) (39,000)												 	 (6,850,665)						 (4,450,199)				 ‐																		 	 ‐																			 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																			 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 (11,300,864)			 D

E.	Ending	Balance	(A	+	D)
as	of	02/28/2023 12,761,000$			 5,949,335$						 1,538,136$			 ‐$															 	 ‐$																	 	 ‐$																		 	 ‐$																		 	 ‐$																		 	 ‐$																		 	 ‐$																		 	 ‐$																 	 ‐$																		 	 ‐$																		 	 1,499,136							 E

F.	Planned	Use	of	Savings 39,000													 	 39,000													 	 39,000											 	 ‐																		 	 ‐																			 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																			 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																			 	 F

G.	Carryforward	(E	+	F) 12,800,000						 5,988,335								 1,577,136						 ‐																		 	 ‐																			 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																			 	 ‐																					 	 ‐																					 	 1,499,136							 G

Created by: Tanya Robacker 104



Central	Pierce	Fire	&	Rescue
General	Fund,	EMS,	and	Reserve	Funds	as	of
02/28/2023

Col	A Col	B Col	C Col	D Col	E Col	F

2023	REVENUE	&	EXPENDITURES	‐	GENERAL	AND	EMS	FUNDS

A.	BEGINNING	BALANCES

Checkbook
Gen	Fund	&	EMS
(001	&	101)

Gen	Fund	&	
EMS	

Reserves
Reserve	Fund

(011)
ERF
(015)

Facilities
(050)

TOTAL	Gen	
Fund,	EMS	&	
Reserves

1. Beginning	Balance	1/1/2023*	(Carryforward) ‐$																							 	 ‐$																 	 ‐$																 	 343,826$									 26,124$									 369,950$								
2. Minimum	Cash	Flow	(Working	Capital	Reserve) 12,800,000											 12,800,000				
3. 5%	Operating	Reserve	(Revenue	Stabilization) 4,556,210						 4,556,210							
4. Unreserved	Carryforward 6,036,481						 6,036,481							
5. Total	Beginning	Balances* 12,800,000									 6,036,481				 4,556,210				 343,826									 26,124										 23,762,641				

6. B.	REVENUE	(+) 2,900,616												 ‐																	 	 24,047											 25,000												 ‐																	 	 2,949,663							

7. C.	EXPENDITURES	(‐) 14,201,480									 ‐																	 	 ‐																	 	 94,781$										 56,436$								 14,352,697				

8.
D.	NET	CHANGE		[Revenue	(‐)		Expenditure]
Increase	/	(Decrease) (11,300,864)							 ‐																	 	 24,047											 (69,781)										 (56,436)								 (11,403,034)		

9.

E.	Preliminary	Ending	Balance	(A	+	D)
as	of	02/28/2023	
(Unaudited	and	subject	to	change) 1,499,136$									 6,036,481$		 4,580,257$		 274,045$							 (30,312)$						 12,359,607$		
*NOTE:	Beginning	Balances	Unaudited
Fund	Key:

10. 		Minimum	Cash	Flow	‐	Working	capital	reserve	that	gets	us	from	October	tax	payment	through	the	April	tax	payment.
11. 		5%	Operating	Reserve	‐	Revenue	stabilization/emergency	reserve	to	fund	expenditures	during	disasters,	moved	to	011	August	2020.
12. 		Unreserved	Carryforward	‐	Money	in	savings	in	the	fund,	available	for	use	in	the	same	manner	as	the	fund	it	resides	in.
13. 		Operating	Funds	(001	Gen	Fund	and	101	EMS	Fund)	‐	Available	to	cover	all	Salaries,	Benefits,	Supplies,	Services,	Capital	and	Debt.
14. 		Reserve	Fund	(011)	‐	Revenue	stabilization/emergency	reserve	to	fund	expenditures	during	disasters,	5	%	+	interest.
15. 		ERF	/	Reserve	(015)	‐	Reserved	by	Board	Resolution	to	fund	replacement	costs	for	equipment	and	apparatus.
16. 		Facilities	(050)	‐	Reserved	by	Board	Resolution	to	fund	building	maintenance	and	repairs.

Created by: Tanya Robacker 1  of  2105



Central	Pierce	Fire	&	Rescue
ALL	Funds	as	of
02/28/2023

Col	A Col	B Col	C Col	D Col	E

A.	BEGINNING	BALANCE

TOTAL	Gen	
Fund,	EMS	&	
Reserves

GEMT
(102)

Debt
(201)

Capital	Projects
(301)

Year‐To‐Date	
TOTALS

Beginning	Balance	1/1/2023*	(Carryforward) 23,762,641$								 16,001,870$								 501,184$														 15,325,609$								 55,591,304$		
1. Total	Beginning	Balances* 23,762,641								 16,001,870								 501,184														 15,325,609								 55,591,304				

2. B.	REVENUE	(+) 2,949,663											 1,101,164											 49,293																	 61,018																	 4,161,138							

3. C.	EXPENDITURES	(‐) 14,352,697								 ‐																									 ‐																									 16,886																	 14,369,583				

4.
D.	NET	CHANGE	[Revenue	(‐)		Expenditure]
Increase	/	(Decrease) (11,403,034)						 1,101,164											 49,293																	 44,132																	 (10,208,445)		

5.

E.	Preliminary	Ending	Balance	(A	+	D)
as	of	02/28/2023	
(Unaudited	and	subject	to	change) 12,359,607$						 17,103,034$						 550,477$												 15,369,741$						 45,382,859$		
*NOTE:	Beginning	Balances	Unaudited ‐																						 	
Fund	Key:

6. 		GEMT	Fund	(102)	‐	Reserved	revenue	from	medicaid	transports,	restricted	to	use	for	EMS	operating,	capital,	and	facility	costs
7. 		Debt	Fund	(201)	‐	Reserved	revenue	source	from	the	Excess	Levy,	restricted	to	use	for	GO	Bond	Debt	repayment	only
8. 		Capital	Project	Fund	(301)	‐	Reserved	revenue	from	the	GO	Bonds,	restricted	to	use	for	capital	facilities,	furnishings,	and	potentially	apparatus.	

Created by: Tanya Robacker 2  of  2106



FUND	301	CAPITAL	PROJECTS 40,869,347      
LIFE‐TO‐DATE	SPENDING 40,869,347      
updated	thru 1/31/23 0.00

2013 to 
2020 2021 2022 2023 Grand	Total

Div DivTi Account2 Account Desc 2021 2022 2023
200 Administration

53501 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 1,615 1,615
Sal & Benefits 658,060 658,060
54151 54151 Legal Fees 54,327 54,327
54911 54911 Contractual Services 252,693 252,693

200 Total 966,696 966,696

204 Logistics

56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 9,078 9,078
204 Total 9,078 9,078

205 Central Stores

53146 53146 Building Repair Parts (0) (0)
54191 54191 Other Professional Services 8,971 8,971
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 10,995 22,105 33,099

205 Total 19,966 22,105 42,070

230 Training

56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 488 10,197 10,684
230 Total 488 10,197 10,684

600 Station 60

53141 53141 Operating Supplies 878 878
53146 53146 Building Repair Parts 280 280
53501 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 39,563 39,563
54111 54111 Advertising 746 746
54191 54191 Other Professional Services 44,365 44,365
54502 54502 Other Operating Rental 6,874 6,874
54611 54611 Insurance 18,500 18,500
54911 54911 Contractual Services 148,534 148,534
56101 56101 Land Acquisition 3,388 3,388
56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 10,177,326 10,177,326
56210 56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 92,080 92,080
56241 56241 Capital‐Construction Contract (3,765) (3,765)
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 1,038,876 1,038,876
56243 56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 116,343 116,343
56244 56244 Buildings ‐ Other Prof Svcs 35,234 35,234
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 133,750 133,750
56421 56421 Equipment ‐ Furniture 238,490 238,490

600 Total 12,091,462 12,091,462

3/23/2023
Prepared by: Tanya Robacker 1  of  4 Bond COST_LTD.xlsx

107



2013 to 
2020 2021 2022 2023 Grand	Total

601 Station 61

54151 54151 Legal Fees 2,499 2,499
54911 54911 Contractual Services 58,179 58,179
56101 56101 Land Acquisition 816,837 816,837
56210 56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 18,001 18,001
56241 56241 Capital‐Construction Contract 1,875 1,875
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 187,906 34,033 78,023 299,962
56243 56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 9,861 9,861
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 26,670 26,670

601 Total 1,121,827 34,033 78,023 1,233,883

602 Station 62

54801 54801 Building Repair/Maintenance 4,891 4,891
54911 54911 Contractual Services 1,200 9,749 10,949
56210 56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 600 600
56243 56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 534 534
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 9,762 9,762

602 Total 15,853 9,749 1,134 26,735

603 Station 63

53146 53146 Building Repair Parts 713 713
53501 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 33,604 33,604
54111 54111 Advertising 751 751
54151 54151 Legal Fees 777 777
54191 54191 Other Professional Services 81,625 81,625
54911 54911 Contractual Services 40,148 40,148
56101 56101 Land Acquisition 466,669 466,669
56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 4,007,131 4,007,131
56210 56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 77,975 77,975
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 459,515 459,515
56243 56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 50,720 50,720
56244 56244 Buildings ‐ Other Prof Svcs 28,870 28,870
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 80,577 80,577
56421 56421 Equipment ‐ Furniture 30,930 30,930

603 Total 5,360,004 5,360,004

604 Station 64

54191 54191 Other Professional Services 1,208 1,208
54801 54801 Building Repair/Maintenance 65,422 65,422
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 6,443 6,443

604 Total 73,072 73,072

605 Station 65

53502 53502 Communication Equipment 5,747 5,747
56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 804 804
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 11,558 11,558

605 Total 18,109 18,109

3/23/2023
Prepared by: Tanya Robacker 2  of  4 Bond COST_LTD.xlsx

108



2013 to 
2020 2021 2022 2023 Grand	Total

606 Station 66

53146 53146 Building Repair Parts 0 0
53501 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 0 0
54151 54151 Legal Fees 0 0
54191 54191 Other Professional Services 0 0
54911 54911 Contractual Services 0 0
56101 56101 Land Acquisition (0) 40,000 40,000
56210 56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 0 1,400 1,400
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs (0) 42,047 4,751 46,798
56243 56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs (0) (0)
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 0 0

606 Total (0) 83,447 4,751 88,198

607 Station 67

54911 54911 Contractual Services 110,000 110,000
56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 804 804
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 17,272 17,272
56243 56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 1,554 1,554
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 11,763 11,763

607 Total 141,392 141,392

617 Training Center (67)

56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 17,970 17,970
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 0 0

617 Total 17,970 17,970

608 Station 68

56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 804 804
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 13,041 13,041

608 Total 13,845 13,845

609 Station 69

54191 54191 Other Professional Services 821 821
54801 54801 Building Repair/Maintenance 108,777 108,777
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 4,675 4,675
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 11,114 11,114

609 Total 125,386 125,386

650 Maint. Shop

56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 5,655 5,655
650 Total 5,655 5,655

701 Station 71

53501 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 993 993
54191 54191 Other Professional Services 2,535 2,535
54502 54502 Other Operating Rental 500 500
54801 54801 Building Repair/Maintenance 31,157 31,157
54912 54912 Fees/Permits 580 580
56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 19,815 19,815
56210 56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 1,190 1,190
56241 56241 Capital‐Construction Contract 176,226 176,226
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 78,809 78,809
56243 56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 5,698 5,698
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 14,679 14,679

701 Total 332,182 332,182

3/23/2023
Prepared by: Tanya Robacker 3  of  4 Bond COST_LTD.xlsx

109



2013 to 
2020 2021 2022 2023 Grand	Total

702 Station 72

53146 53146 Building Repair Parts 376 376
53501 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 5,458 5,458
54111 54111 Advertising 483 483
54151 54151 Legal Fees 10,234 10,234
54191 54191 Other Professional Services 36,361 36,361
54611 54611 Insurance 8,000 8,000
54911 54911 Contractual Services 446,916 446,916
56101 56101 Land Acquisition 3,597,518 3,597,518
56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 145,752 145,752
56210 56210 Capital ‐ Building Permits 315,515 (45,000) 270,515
56241 56241 Capital‐Construction Contract 12,867,594 12,867,594
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 1,320,968 1,320,968
56243 56243 Buildings ‐ Engineering Svcs 257,157 257,157
56244 56244 Buildings ‐ Other Prof Svcs 30,189 30,189
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 123,781 123,781
56421 56421 Equipment ‐ Furniture 1,366 1,366
54941 54941 Printing & Binding 197 197
54731 54731 Electricity 552 552

702 Total 19,168,417 (45,000) 19,123,417

703 Station 73

53501 53501 Small Tools/Equipment 6,349 6,349
54191 54191 Other Professional Services 15,636 15,636
54911 54911 Contractual Services 840 26,704 805 28,349
54912 54912 Fees/Permits 600 600
56101 56101 Land Acquisition 905,798 905,798
56201 56201 Capital ‐ Buildings 80,579 11,034 91,614
56242 56242 Buildings ‐ Architectural Svcs 4,493 72,818 58,021 135,331
56431 56431 Equipment ‐ Miscellaneous 5,831 5,831

703 Total 107,979 79,167 1,001,557 805 1,189,508

Grand Total 39,579,817 68,200 1,204,445 16,886 40,869,347

3/23/2023
Prepared by: Tanya Robacker 4  of  4 Bond COST_LTD.xlsx

110



2023 Board Discretionary Fund Activity

Beginning Balance: 250,000.00      

Request for Funds: Approved: Amount: Rejected

Total Requests to date: -                 

Remaining Funds Available as of: 2/28/2023 250,000.00    

02-2023 Financial Status Report

111



MONTH COLLECTIONS
OUTSTANDING

 
 

REG LEVY FBC EMS LEVY EXCESS LEVY TOTAL-MONTH
Total Collected 

YTD
*TAXES LEVIED / 
OUTSTANDING

83,342,310.00         2023 Budget
January $64,819.31 $67,842.93 $25,629.46 $5,319.71 $163,611.41 $163,611.41 $83,178,698.59
February $510,144.84 $619,912.66 $346,436.88 $40,464.62 $1,516,959.00 $1,516,959.00 $81,661,739.59 Amount to collect
March
April
May
June
July
August
September
October
November 
December

Total Taxes YTD $574,964.15 $687,755.59 $372,066.34 $45,784.33 $1,680,570.41

*includes $0.71 (Regular), $0.50 (EMS) and Benefit Assessment

TAX & FBC COLLECTIONS MONTHLY

02-2023 Financial Status Report

112



CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE  TRANSPORT COLLECTIONS

MONTH
TRANSPORT 

COLLECTIONS
GEMT 

COLLECTIONS
TOTAL
MONTH

TOTAL 
COLLECTED YTD

TRANSPORT 
COLLECTIONS 

REMAINING

4,242,000.00         2023 Budget
January $426,975.80 $518,055.72 $945,031.52 $945,031.52 $3,815,024.20
February $396,355.26 $583,108.03 $979,463.29 $979,463.29 $3,418,668.94 Amount to collect
March
April
May
June
July
August  
September  
October
November 
December
Total YTD $823,331.06 $1,101,163.75 $1,924,494.81

02-2023 Financial Status Report

113



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:    March 27th, 2023  
Item Title:     Logistics Update 
Attachments:      
Submitted by:    AC Stueve 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 

 Fleet – E22-1/E22-2 was placed in-service as Rotational Engines and have 

started servicing the community.  Rotational Engines were an investment by the 

BOC to have reliable apparatus for Operations when planned and unplanned 

service occurs. 

  

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
  

114



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
Agenda Date: March 27, 2023 
Item Title:  PrevEd Division Report 
Attachments:  N/A 
Submitted by AC Berdan 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 
 

 
 

 
SUMMARY:     
 
1. Great Escape Program 

 
A. The Great Escape Program has wrapped up with 24 participating elementary 

schools.   
B. Feedback from teachers, students, and parents was overwhelmingly positive, and 

now we are in the process of collecting winning projects to display at the Spring 
Fair.  

 
2. Scout Day 

 
A. Our first Scout Day on March 11th was an absolute success. We had nearly 120 

scouts (boy, girl, and cubs) present from our community; though we had requests 
from all around western Washington to attend. This event engaged the scouts, 
troop/pack leaders, and their families in a variety of merit badge topics, in addition to 
fire safety: fingerprinting (with Pierce County Sherriff’s Office), aquatic safety (with 
Goldfish Swim School), emergency preparedness (with the Red Cross), crime 
prevention (with Puyallup PD), and safety (with SouthSound 911). B-Shift at Station 
72 were incredible and gracious hosts to this event. 

 

3. SafeSitter Program 
 

A. Central Pierce’s SafeSitter Program was recently recognized by the SafeSitter, Inc. 
headquarters as a Bronze Level Provider, which equates to 75-99 students taught in 
2022. They thanked us for our “commitment to the health, safety, and wellness of 
[our] students and the children they care for [which] has made an incredible 
difference.” 

  

115



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 2 

  

4. Spring Fair 
 

A. Preparations for the Spring Fair are well underway, and we have an exciting new 
partnership on the horizon! Fisher Scones has teamed up with our crew at Station 70 
to enhance our “spinning wheel” prize options. They have generously offered to 
donate 50 “one free scone” coupons per day for the entirety of the Spring Fair for us 
to add to our wheel. We are thrilled to join together with this local tradition. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A 
 

 
 
 

116



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 
Agenda Date  March 27, 2023 
Item Title:  Health & Safety Division Report 
Attachments:  N/A 
Submitted by AC McKenzie 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 
 

 
 

 
SUMMARY:     
 

1. Ryan White Act.  
A. H&S is working with CPFR partner LE Agencies on procedures to follow 

when requesting. 
 

2. Upating CPFR Infection Control Program: 
A. Highlighting best practices 
B. Needles access system 
C. Threat base PPE system 

 
3. H&S working on 2023 Fire Service Standdown 

 
A. Focus for 2023 is Lithium-Ion Batteries & Energy Storage System 
B. Behavioral Health & Resiliency 

 
 

4. OSHA injury to report December & January 
A. 2 Musculoskeletal injuries 

 
 

 

 
 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A 
 

117



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 
Agenda Date: March 27, 2023 
Item Title:  Adminstration Division Report 
Attachments:  N/A 
Submitted by DC VanKeulen 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 
1. Facility Master Plan 

A. 62: Demo and materials are ordered 
B. New Administration: Tenant improvements are underway 

 
2. Apparatus Master Plan 

A. Master List of all apparatus 
 

3. Fire Engine Connectivity/Technology 
A. Existing technology survey 

 
4. Operations Drill 

A. Multiple agency complex incident 
 

5. Survivor Meet & Greet 

A. Sunday, April 2, 2023. Station 68. 1200-1300. Young man survivor that crews 
rescued from a mobile home fire at the end of 2022. Crews have maintained contact with the 
family through Chaplain Beauchamp. With family permission, 2 news outlets have voiced 
interest in being present. 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: N/A 

118



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: March 27, 2023 
Item Title:  Fire Chief’s Report   
Attachments:  None 
Submitted by: Chief Morrow   
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
  
Inspiration Works 
 
The Executive Team participated in an all day leadership team retreat that was led by Roger 
and Val Pease from Inspiration Works, LLC. The day was filled with discovery and support for 
our efforts that are embedded in the current Strategic Plan, specifically to our Health Strategic 
Anchor. 
 
Roger and Val will continue to work with the Executive Team to advance our understanding of 
working well together, and enhancing the way with how we lead and manage within the 
organization.    
 

119



120



 Additionally, I would like to request that an honorary Unit Citation be issued to the following 
personnel who are outside of our organization but without whom John's memorial would not have 
been as exceptional as it was. 

121

para08030
Stamp



Mission:  Effect ively respond, cont inuously improve,  compassionately serve  

 

 

 

 
 

March 19, 2023 

 

Dear Jeremy, 

The purpose of this letter is to formally commend you for your actions regarding a ramp you and your crew 

built for a citizen.  On March 17th, 2023, you responded to a call for a sick male.  You and your crew arrived 

to find an 80-year-old man who uses a wheelchair.  The entry to the home had a small rubber mat that was 

being used as a ramp.  This presented a challenging situation for the patient and his wife. 

In response, you and your crew took the initiative to acquire materials to build a ramp for this family.  Some 

of the items you received through donations, and others you purchased yourselves. Your caring and 

professional efforts had a significant impact on the family.  I commend your resourcefulness and example; it 

unmistakably demonstrates the values of our organization. 

On behalf of a grateful department, I extend our appreciation for your efforts this weekend. I encourage 

you to continue these caring and professional endeavors and share these with the many young aspiring 

firefighters entering our workforce. 

 

Sincerely,  

 
Adam Rosenlund 

Battalion Chief 

 

Cc: Personnel File 

Commissioner Packet 

 

 

 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 940, Spanaway, WA  98387 

17520 – 22nd Ave E, Tacoma, WA  98445 
(253) 538-6400   (253) 276-6770  Fax 

www.centralpiercefire.org 

 

122

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/


Mission:  Effect ively respond, cont inuously improve,  compassionately serve 

 

 

 

 
 

March 19, 2023 

 

Dear Ryan, 

The purpose of this letter is to formally commend you for your actions regarding a ramp you and your crew 

built for a citizen.  On March 17th, 2023, you responded to a call for a sick male.  You and your crew arrived 

to find an 80-year-old man who uses a wheelchair.  The entry to the home had a small rubber mat that was 

being used as a ramp.  This presented a challenging situation for the patient and his wife. 

In response, you and your crew took the initiative to acquire materials to build a ramp for this family.  Some 

of the items you received through donations, and others you purchased yourselves. Your caring and 

professional efforts had a significant impact on the family.  I commend your resourcefulness and example; it 

unmistakably demonstrates the values of our organization. 

On behalf of a grateful department, I extend our appreciation for your efforts this weekend. I encourage 

you to continue these caring and professional endeavors and share these with the many young aspiring 

firefighters entering our workforce. 

 

Sincerely,  

 
Adam Rosenlund 

Battalion Chief 

 

Cc: Personnel File 

Commissioner Packet 

 

 

 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 940, Spanaway, WA  98387 

17520 – 22nd Ave E, Tacoma, WA  98445 
(253) 538-6400   (253) 276-6770  Fax 

www.centralpiercefire.org 

 

123

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/


Mission:  Effect ively respond, cont inuously improve,  compassionately serve 

 

 

 

 
 

March 19, 2023 

 

Dear Joe, 

The purpose of this letter is to formally commend you for your actions regarding a ramp you and your crew 

built for a citizen.  On March 17th, 2023, you responded to a call for a sick male.  You and your crew arrived 

to find an 80-year-old man who uses a wheelchair.  The entry to the home had a small rubber mat that was 

being used as a ramp.  This presented a challenging situation for the patient and his wife. 

In response, you and your crew took the initiative to acquire materials to build a ramp for this family.  Some 

of the items you received through donations, and others you purchased yourselves. Your caring and 

professional efforts had a significant impact on the family.  I commend your resourcefulness and example; it 

unmistakably demonstrates the values of our organization. 

On behalf of a grateful department, I extend our appreciation for your efforts this weekend. I encourage 

you to continue these caring and professional endeavors and share these with the many young aspiring 

firefighters entering our workforce. 

 

Sincerely,  

 
Adam Rosenlund 

Battalion Chief 

 

Cc: Personnel File 

Commissioner Packet 

 

 

 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 940, Spanaway, WA  98387 

17520 – 22nd Ave E, Tacoma, WA  98445 
(253) 538-6400   (253) 276-6770  Fax 

www.centralpiercefire.org 

 

124

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/


Mission:  Effect ively Respond, Continuously Improve,  Compassionately Serve 

 

 

 

 
 
March 23, 2023 
 
Sergeant Dylan Rice 
Puyallup Police Department 
311 W. Pioneer 
Puyallup, Wa. 98371 
 
 
Sergeant Rice, 
 
On behalf of Central Pierce Fire and Rescue, I want to officially recognize and commend the 
actions of two of your Officers for their assistance in rendering care to a member of our 
community who had succumbed to an opioid overdose in the early morning hours of March 21, 
2023. 
 
On this morning, our agencies responded to a 33-year-old male who had overdosed at his 
residence and was reported to be in Cardiac Arrest.  Officer Nate Jendrick arrived and found no 
pulse or breathing.  Officer Jendrick immediately administered a dose of Narcan.  After witch, 
the patient presented with agonal-like respirations and was placed in the recovery position with 
a palpable pulse.  The pulse quickly faded, at which point Officer Jendrick delivered another 
dose of Narcan while Officer Josh Schaub performed CPR on the patient.  Pulses were 
regained again, at which point our crews arrived. 

The patient was revived and to spite our best efforts to transport to the Emergency Room, the 
patient refused to be transported and was released to family members on scene with additional 
doses of Narcan provided by the Puyallup Police Department.   
 
Please accept my heartfelt gratitude for the deliberate acts on the part of Officers Nate 
Jendricks and Josh Schaub whose actions, in the normal course of duty, and in the absence of 
great personal risk, directly resulted in the saving of a human life. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Jason Simmons 
Lieutenant / Paramedic  
 

 

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 940, Spanaway, WA  98387 

17520 – 22nd Ave E, Tacoma, WA  98445 
(253) 538-6400   (253) 276-6770 Fax 

www.centralpiercefire.org 

 

125

http://www.centralpiercefire.org/

	1 - 2023-03-27 Board Agenda DRAFT
	5B - 2023-03-13 Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	5C - 2023_03_27 Warrant Approval
	7A - BOD 3.13 AIS First Read
	7A1 - Policy 313 Eleemosynary Policy 07-24-00 OLD
	7A2 - 3.13 ELEEMOSYNARY POLICY RED
	7A3- 3.13 ELEEMOSYNARY POLICY CLEAN
	8A - 2023-03-27_Agenda Item Summary PSG MGADC Contract
	8A1 - PSG_Medicare GADCS Survey_Contract Tier III_DRAFT
	8B - AIS LOGISTICS_AdminFurnitureRFP
	8B1 - Catalyst Proposal
	8B2 - 2023_AdminOfficeFurnitureRFP_ScoringSheet
	8B3 - Signed Scoring Sheet
	8B4 - 2023_AdminOfficeFurnitureRFP_FinanceChecklist
	8B5 - Bid Opening Log_AdminOfficeFurnitureRFP
	8C - ILA FUEL AIS LOGISTICS
	8C1 - ILA - Fuel CPFR
	9A - 2023-03-27_AIS_Finance Update
	9A1 - 2023-02 Board Investment FINAL
	2023-02_01-BvA Checkbook
	2023-02_02-Fund Bal Monthly
	2023-02_03-Bond LTD
	2023-02_05-Board Investment
	02-2023 CONTINGENCY
	02-2023 TAXES
	02-2023 TRANSPORT


	9B - AIS LOGISTICS Div Report
	9C - P&E Div Report
	9D - HS Div Report 03-27-23
	9E - BVK Div Report AIS
	9F - FC Report AIS 3.27.23
	10A - Commendation - Stedman
	Blank Page

	10B - Jeremy Toft
	10C - Ryan Taylor
	10D - Joe Otto
	10E - PPD Overdose



